








 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

FROM: Michael Guerrero; Atticus Harbor Village, LLC 
 

DATE: November 26, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: MIS2019-015; Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement    
 

 

The applicant, Michael Guerrero of Atticus Harbor Village, LLC, is requesting approval of an alternative 
tree mitigation settlement agreement for the subject property.  On December 13, 2016, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission approved two (2) site plans for the subject property laying out a 228-unit 
condominium development and a 48-unit townhome development [i.e. SP2016-030 & SP2016-031].  At 
the time of approval, the treescape plans for these cases indicated a total of 3,561 caliper-inches of 
trees would be removed from the subject property.  The approved landscape plans for these cases 
indicated a total of 1,032 caliper inches would be added back to the subject property.  This left an 
outstanding mitigation balance of 2,529-inches.   
 
To address the outstanding balance the applicant has provided an invoice to staff indicating the cost of 
providing the City with 843, three (3) caliper inch trees (i.e. 596 Cedar Elms & 247 Eastern Red Cedars 
x 3” = 2,529”).  The invoice includes the cost of the trees and a delivery fee for a total of $125,000.  
According to Section 5.6 of Article IX, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the 
mitigation balance may be satisfied by one (1) or a combination of the following: 
 
(1) The developer can provide trees on site to off-set the mitigation balance. 
(2) The developer may petition the Parks and Recreation Department to accept the required number of 

trees to off-set the mitigation balance. 
(3) Tree preservation credits may be purchased at a rate of $200.00 per inch for up to 20 percent of the 

total replacement inches.  Additionally, if the developer plants a tree on the property, the developer 
would be eligible for a reduction in the cost of tree preservation credits of up to 50 percent (i.e. 
$100.00 per inch).  

 
Based on these choices, the applicant could purchase 20% of the total replacement inches (i.e. 505” = 
$50,580.00), which would leave a mitigation balance of 2,023-inches.  The remaining mitigation 
balance would translate to 674, three (3)-caliper inch trees, which would need to be provided to the 
Parks and Recreations Department for off-site planting.  In lieu of providing the trees the applicant has 
submitted an offer indicating they would like to settle the mitigation balance through an alternative tree 
mitigation settlement agreement.   
 
Section 5.7, Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreements, of Article IX, Tree Preservation, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC), this gives the City Council the ability to approve an alternative tree 
mitigation plans on a case-by-case basis pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission.  Should this request be approved, the applicant is proposing to satisfy the mitigation 
balance by providing a check in the amount of $125,000.  These funds will be deposited in the City’s 
tree mitigation fund and will be used for planting trees in the city’s parks, medians, and other similar 
areas.  If the City Council does not approve an alternative tree mitigation settlement agreement, the 
applicant intends to provide the full balance to the Parks Department to be used in other areas of the 
City. 
 
Should the Planning and Zoning Commission have any questions staff will be available at the 
November 26, 2019 meeting.  





RID
GE

SUMMER LEE

HORIZON

PINNACLE

SUNSET RIDGE

GLEN HILL

PARKS
IDE

RID
GE

PD-32

C

GR

PD-18

PD-9

MIS2019-015 - ATTICUS TREE MITIGATION
MISCELLANEOUS - LOCATION MAP =        

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor 

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user.

City of Rockwall

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com I



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Rick Crowley, City Manager 
 Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
  

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: December 2, 2019 
 

SUBJECT: MIS2019-015; Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement   
 

 

The applicant, Michael Guerrero of Atticus Harbor Village, LLC, is requesting approval of an Alternative 
Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement for the subject property.  On December 13, 2016, the Planning 
and Zoning Commission approved two (2) site plans for the subject property laying out a 228-unit 
condominium development and a 48-unit townhome development [i.e. SP2016-030 & SP2016-031].  At 
the time of approval, the treescape plans for these cases indicated a total of 3,561 caliper-inches of 
trees would be removed from the subject property.  The approved landscape plans for these cases 
indicated a total of 1,032 caliper inches would be added back to the subject property.  This left an 
outstanding mitigation balance of 2,529-inches.   
 
To address the outstanding balance the applicant has provided an invoice to staff indicating the cost of 
providing the City with 843, three (3) caliper inch trees (i.e. 596 Cedar Elms & 247 Eastern Red Cedars 
x 3” = 2,529”).  The invoice includes the cost of the trees and a delivery fee for a total of $125,000.  
According to Section 5.6 of Article IX, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), the 
mitigation balance may be satisfied by one (1) or a combination of the following: 
 
(1) The developer can provide trees on site to off-set the mitigation balance. 
(2) The developer may petition the Parks and Recreation Department to accept the required number of 

trees to off-set the mitigation balance. 
(3) Tree preservation credits may be purchased at a rate of $200.00 per inch for up to 20 percent of the 

total replacement inches.  Additionally, if the developer plants a tree on the property, the developer 
would be eligible for a reduction in the cost of tree preservation credits of up to 50 percent (i.e. 
$100.00 per inch).  

 
Based on these choices, the applicant could purchase 20% of the total replacement inches (i.e. 505” = 
$50,580.00), which would leave a mitigation balance of 2,023-inches.  The remaining mitigation 
balance would translate to 674, three (3)-caliper inch trees, which would need to be provided to the 
Parks and Recreations Department for off-site planting.  In lieu of providing the trees the applicant has 
submitted an offer indicating they would like to settle the mitigation balance through an alternative tree 
mitigation settlement agreement.   
 
According to Section 5.7, Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreements, of Article IX, Tree 
Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), this gives the City Council the ability to approve 
alternative tree mitigation plans on a case-by-case basis -- pending a recommendation from the 
Planning and Zoning Commission.  Should this request be approved, the applicant is proposing to 
satisfy the mitigation balance by providing a check in the amount of $125,000.  These funds will be 
deposited in the City’s tree mitigation fund and will be used for planting trees in the city’s parks, 
medians, and other similar areas.  If the City Council does not approve an alternative tree mitigation 
settlement agreement, the applicant intends to provide the full balance to the Parks Department to be 
used in other areas of the City.   



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

On November 26, 2019, the Planning and Zoning Commission made a motion to recommend approval 
of the proposed Alternative Tree Mitigation Settlement Agreement.  The motion was approved by a vote 
of 4-0, with Commissioners Chodun, Logan, and Fishman absent.  The approval of the applicant’s 
request is a discretionary decision for the City Council.  Staff will be available at the December 2, 2019 
meeting.   
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